[bookmark: _GoBack][image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]
image7.jpg
170 3 suTTOSEH
sot1Tddng Butiexado

IR TPOR

uoTyesuUsduo) S,ISNION
uotsusg

2TqTIoNpag POURINSUT
OURINSUTI 2ITT/TeRITdSOoH
K1TInosg TRTOO0S

swry TTnd - TTOxA®Rd

000°9%L-0FF-T0T
000°0%L-0¥P-TOT
000°22L-07P-T0T
000°02L-0%F-TOT
000°8TL-0%F-TOT
TO0'9TL-0%P-TOT
000°9TL-0%F-TOT
000°GTL-0%7-10T
000°20L-077-TI0T

§80TATSS OTIANd - 0bF 3daq

Teatden

SI0DRIJUOD " JUTER ¥ ZTedsy
SOTITTTIN

spuog 3 @oueInsur
SUOTIRITUNIIOD

‘AZRS Ten3oRIjUC)/TRUCTISSSIO0AL
soTTddng Ajeyes

sa1Tddng sourusjUTEH ¥ ITedey
TT0 3 eur(osey

goTTddng Huriezado

8aTd - 9¢€¢ 3daq TElIOL

000°0L6-9€€-T0T
000°0€6-9€E-T0T
000°0C6-9€€~10T
000°0T6-9€€-T0T
000°058-9€£-T0T
000°008-9€€-101T
000°08L-9€€-T0T
000°GLL-9€E-TOT
000°9%L-9€€-T0T
000°0%L-9€€-T0T
8aTd - 9¢g 3daqg

20TT0Od - 00€ 3dad re3ol

*AZ9S Ten3OoeIJU0)/TRUCTSS2I0XJ

SABOTPSH
Aatanoeg Teroos
owry 3aIed - TTozARd

000°008-00£-T0T
000°22L-00E-T0T
000°5TL-00€-10T
000°€0L-00€-T0T
907104 - 00€ 3d=a

senTAIRg TeHIT - 0Tz 3dea Teiol

€193 92TT0d-Aouxd13v
TepIBUSH - ABUIOIIY

000°208-0T2~10T
000°T08-0T2-10T

$90TAI9S (BbaT - 0Tz 3deq

uOTIRTISTUTWRY - 007 3d°d [eI0L

Te3tden

sa0joeIUC) "AUTRN 3 ITedsy
SITITTTIN

spuog ® 20URINSUT

Burystrand 3 ButjuTid
ButuTEAl, 3 S99NITISUT
SUOTABD TUTIWOD)

song ¥ SATYSISQUSK

Se0TATSS Iainduwo)

*AZSS TeN3ORIIUOD/TRUOTSSDIOIT
seTTddng sourusjurery ¥ Itredsy

000°046-002-10T
000°0£6-002-10T
000°026-00Z-10T
000°0T6-00Z-10T
000 006-00Z-10T
000°098-002-T0T
000°058-002-T0T
000" 0£8-00Z-T0T
000°508-002-10T
000°008-002-T0T
000°624-002-10T

seanyTouedxa

aNOd TYEENED - TOT Pund

NOTLATYDS3a

00°00% ‘% 19°86 1€°19 LET€T6 69°8EE'F 00°00% ‘%
00005 ‘2 9L°T L0°95% ‘T 0070 €6°€P 00°005°2
007087 T L8°6F L8 TvL ¥9°291 €T"8EL 00'08%'T
00°009°€ 00°0 00°009 ‘€ 0070 00°0 007009 ‘€
00005 ‘TP €6° 1€ 81°L¥T’8Z £€°216'¢ 28°252'¢€T 007005 ’1¥%
007007 ‘2 00°0 00°00%‘2 00°0 00°0 00°00%'Z
00°000°p¥ £7°0¥ LL701Z2'9Z 81°795°€E £2°68L LT 00°000°7%
00°00€’9 010§ 6EEVT'E 81°569 19°95T°¢ 00°00€‘9
00°000°20T 67°8E 8€°GEL'TY 08°288'8 29°y92’6¢ 00°000°Z0T
00°00T‘€2T ¥8°LE 86 8IS ‘9L 85°806'C 27 185°9% 00°00T’€2T
00°000°ST €5 vz 00°0ZE‘TT 0070 007089 ‘€ 00°000'ST
00°000°0T 00°0 00°000°0T 00°0 00°0 00°000°0T
00°00L‘2 LE"9T €6°L86°T [A 22 LO"ZTL 00°00L’2
00°000°%T TE"08 00°96L°C 00°0 00°pFPZ TT 00°000°¥%T
00°002°F 0L’ SE 8L°00L°T 00°06 226671 00°00Z°%
00°000°0L 287 6€ 00°52T°2h 00°5L5’S 00°6L8"LZ 00000 ‘0L
00°00T 00°0 00°00T 000 00°0 00°00T
00°000°T SZOPT  (Sb 0P} 0070 Sv 207’1 00°000°T
00°000°T L8797 ze 1E8 9T°L6 89°89T 00°000°T
00°00T°S 00°0 00°00T°S 00°0 0070 00°00T’S
00" FIL LYY LY T 8£°250°292 86657 ‘LE 297199 ‘68T 00°FTL LYY
00°pTZ‘0¥F L9°TH 06°T6L°952 05°789 ‘9¢ 05°2Zh ‘€8T 00°¥TZ'0FV
00°00T 9T°0€ 78769 P57 0T 97" 0€ 00°00T
00°009 12814 ¥O'TLY ¥9°9Y 96°82T 00°009
0070089 65°0€ 00°02L"Y 00°0ZL 0070802 00°008'9
00°008°52 S6°EZ SZ°129 76T 00°6z2’T SL*8LT'Y 00°008°SZ
0070086 6L°TT 00°5%9°8 00°00L 00°5ST'T 00°008’6
00°000°9T 0p° 1€ ST°9L6°0T 007625 SL'€20’S 00°000°9T
00°059 ‘9pE 16°€S ST°L9L’6ST 61787591 587288 98T 00°059 ‘9%€
00°000°L €779¥z  (00°0SZ°0T) 0070 0070SZ ‘LT 00°000°L
00°086°Z 69°LS 00°8¥Z’T 00°0 00°20L°T 007086
007000 ‘% ST9€E €6°708°2 0Z° 782 L0"G65°T 007007’V
00700T”L €2°6L 00°GLE T 00°0 00°529°¢ 00°00T°L
00°000°2 SCUTT 00°GLL'T 00°0 00°522 0070002
00°00€‘T 8767 287959 €€°LTT 8T €79 00°00€°T
00°00€‘L LL"9G 067551’ 96 zeL 0S ¥¥1'¥ 00°00€’L
00°00Z°T €1°8 05°Z0T‘T 05°L9 05°L6 00°002’T
0070056 0L"ZE LV €6E°9 €579€Y £5°90T°¢ 00°005’6
00°005S LL €0 {€€°L027ZT) SL9€6°TC €ETLOL'LT 00°005°S
00'00T'Z 980T €0°7L8°T L6°LOT 167122 00°00T‘2
LADANE agsn (HEONEY) WYON {40EA) WONI (HONEY) WION LADANG AEANTNY
TYNIOTMO 1909 §  EONVIVE 2Z/0€/TT HINOW  ZZ0Z/0E/TT £2-220C
£2-2202 ATEVITVAY ¥0d ALIAIIOV FAONVTYE LXK

ZZ0Z/0€/TT DNIANT AOI¥Ed

Z1/z7 :ebea LNAWHOWYE 40 ALID YOI L¥0dEd TMAITANTAXE ANY FONTATY

YEERON T9

queuyored :gd
§ss :x9Sn

W 2S§:2T zzoz/zz/et




image8.jpg
00°90L ¥6°¥ET’E (EF"9€T'80T) {LV 695 '€9T) £7'766 V12T 00°858°9 SHUNIIANTIXE 3 SHANIATY J0 LN

00°¥60°LSS T 85765 98°9TE ‘629 68°0£6 99T YL LIL LT6 00°%60°LS5°T STINLIANEIXE TYLOL
00°008°LSS ‘T LOEL £P 06T ‘1Z¥ ZP S9€’E LG T9L 2PT T 007256 €96‘T SEANFATY TYLOL
:aNAd CTYNENED - TOT pund

00°¥60°L5S'T 8665 98°92¢ ‘629 68°0€6 /99T VI L9L'LTE 00°760°LSS ‘T SHUNITIANAdKA TYIOL
00°066 28T BE' VS vezLz’es vy 19291 9L LLZ'66 007055281 |INITND 3 UOTIRBIODY ‘syTed - T§L 3dea Teiel
00°000°9 00°0 00°000°9 00°0 00°0 . 00°000°9 Teatded 000" 0L6-T5L-TOT
00°002'6Z S§'ST 69°859vZ 00°T6T SETTIS‘V 00700262 £3030BIIUCD JUTER 3 ITRdSY 000°0€6-TI5L-T0T
00°00T L 69°TL 82°0T0‘T 06°0€6 TL'680°CS 00°00T'L SOTITTTAIN 000'026-T5L-T0T
00" 00T L 00°GL 00°GLL'T 00°0 00°§2€‘S 00°00T‘L spuog ¥ 20URINSUT 000" 0T6-TSL-TOT
00'0 00°00T  {08°280°v2) 00765272 08°280'72 0070 ‘4SS [PN3DBIIUOD/TRUOTSSST0IG 000°008-T1GL-T0T
00°00% 00°C 00°00% 00°0 00°0 00°00% so11ddng Ajezes 000°08L-TSL-TOT
00°000°€T 75°0% T6°2€%°9 T9°650°T 60°L95°9 00°000 ‘€T soTTddng eouruequTeN ¥ ITedew 000'6LL~TGL-TOT
0070082 €T IL 28°508 7V 66T 8177661 00°008°2 TT0 3 2urTOSED 000°97L~TGL-TOT
00058 1€°68 78°6LE ¥8°LOT 91" 0LY 007058 SIBOTPAR 000°2ZL-T5L-T0T
00°005°€ 0070 00°005 ‘€ 00°0 0070 00°005°€ uotiesusduod §,I%TON 000°0ZL-TGL-TOT
00700072 TLUSP TE"620 €T v ese’e 69°0L6 0T 00°000 ‘vz uotrsued 000°8TL-TSL-T0T
00°00%°T 00°0 00°00%°T 00°0 00°0 007007 T 21qTIompaq °dUBINSUT T00"9TL-TSL-TOT
00700572 8722 18716681 LZ°80T'T €1°805°S 007005 ‘%2 SouURINSUI I TT/TRATASCH 000°9TL-TSL-TOT
00°00L‘€E SE'TS 9678891 €2°T9% V0 T10°T 00°00L"€E A31an09s [eTd0S 000" STL-TSL-TOT
0000065 SV "5SS 0¥ 282792 167667 'L 09°LTL ZE 00°000°6S Qwry TT0d - TroThed 000°20L-T§L-TOT

2IN3TOD # UOTILDIDDY ‘Sxaed - T6L ded

060°0 00°00T {EF"8¥8°T02) NERE] €7 878 °‘T0Z 00°0 sosuedxd 1URID JURTd I91BM - T6G 3ded Te3ol
00°0 00°00T  (00°¥LI’9¥) 00°0 00°FLT 9V 0070 TeTde) 000°0L6-T65-T0T
00°0 00°00T  (0££€6) ££°102 0€°£E6 0070 SSTITTTIN 000°026-T65-T0T
00°0 00°00T  (61°8£9°%ST) 00" ¥¥P’9 61°8€9 '¥ST 00°0 AXSS TEN30RIIUCD/TRUOTSSDI0AL 000°008-T65-T0T
0070 00°00T  (¥6°20T) 0070 76°20T 00°0 sar1ddng buriezedo 000°0¥L-T65-T0T

sosuadxy Jueid Jueld Ie3eMm - 16¢ 3dseq

00°08F’66€ 79 Sk TL 8VZ’LIT 50°£59 8% 82 TEZ 28T 00087 ‘66€ S90TAI9S OTTAnd - 0Fp adea TRIoL
00°000°2 00°5€9  (00°00L0T) 00°00L°2T 00°00L’ZT 00°000°2 TeaTdED 000°0L6-07F-TOT
00°008°TT SZT°¥S vE°86E°S 71°889 ‘% 99°T0% ‘9 00°008°TT $I0392I3UCD ‘AUTEN 3 ITedey 000" 0€6-07F-TOT
007000 6¢ §9°8€ STTI6L LT TT°06E°C SL°802°TT 00700062 ButaybTT 199138 000°926-077-T0T
00°00L°8 6T°SE vZ 8E9 ‘S 66°6L9 9L°T90’€E 00°00L’8 S9TITITAN 000°0Z6-077-T0T
0070009 $9°69 00°TZ8'T 00°0 00°6LT"p 00°000°9 Spuod ¥ 20URINSUT 000°0T6-07%-T0T
007005 0070 00°00§ 00°0 0070 00005 uoTI0oWoId A3TUNIMOD 000°088-0%5-T0T
00°00€ 00°0 00°00€E 00°0 00°0 00°00€ BUTUTRIL ¥ SOINITISUL 000°098-077-T0T
00°000°T 66765 0T"00% 86°6TT 067665 00°000‘T SUOTIROTUTIIIOD 000°058-0%7-T0T
00°006 © 0070 007006 00°0 0070 007006 seng 3 sATUSISqUSH 000°0€8-0¥7-T0T
00°000°€ €2°L9 2Z°€86 L6706% 8L°9T0°C 00°000°€ Telusy wroITun 000°ST8-0¥7-T0T
007007 ‘81T S6°67 LE'¥9Z76S 09°T69°6 €9°GET'6S 00°00¥% ‘81T $2DIRUD UOTIDATTOD USTAANY 000°0T8-0F7-T0T
00°000'T 99°89 PEUETE 8L°08T 95°989 00°000°T TATSS TRNIDRIIUOD/TRUCTSSSI0I 000°008-057-10T
©0°005 000 007005 c0°0 000 00°00S soTTddns A1eTes 000°08L-0%¥-T0T
0070028 0970 6L°295'F L6709G 127159 ‘E 00°00Z‘8 seTTddns soueuejuTed ¥ ITedey 000°SLL~077-TOT

saIn]Tpusdxy

ANQA TREENED - T0T pung

1E9a0g azsn (RIONEY) WION (¥DEa) WONT (HEONEY) WION 139004 AHANIWY NOILATYISHA FITHON T
TYNIDTHO 19ad % FONVTIVE ¢¢/0€/TT HINOW cz0e/0e/1T €2-220¢
€2-2202 ATIYIIYAY W04 ALIAIIOY FONYTVE ALA

juswysIevd dad
§88 Iesn
Z1/€ tebeg LNAWHDEYA A0 ALIO ¥04 LY0dEd FUNLIANHIXH NV AONIATS Wd 2G:21 7202/22/2T

2202/0€/11 DNIGNI QoIdad




image9.jpg
LEDa04d agsn (FIONTY) WHON {¥0Ea) ¥ONI (HEONEY) WJON 139009 GEANINY NOTILAT¥DSHEA HIGRAN TO

TYNIDTHO 1904 3 HONWIWE 22/0€/TT HINOW  £20Z/0€/1T £2-2202
€2-~2207 ATEVITIVAY H0d ALIAILOVY GONVIVE dLA
220¢/0€/T1 ONIANA qoTddd JUSUUDLEL: 16

§SS§ :1I9sn
Z1/% iebeg LNAWNHDEVA d0 ALID ¥Od L90dHY TINITANIIXE ANV FANTATT Wd 7G:¢T z20z/zz/ZT




image10.jpg
0070006 00°0 0070006 00°0 00°0 00°000°6 aTes 000" £5L-8LY-20C
00°000°T vLTTY 197285 00°0 6ELTY 00°000°T 170 3 SuUTTOSED 000°97£-8L7-20C
00°0ST 6T°LE TZ°¥6 L9°¥T 6L°GS 00°0ST SIEDTDSH 000°22L-8LV-20T
00°059 00°0 00°059 00°0 0070 00°059 uoriesusdmo) s, I93I0K 000°02L-8LY-202
00002V SL*8C 0€°266°C 8L €TT 0L°L0Z T 00°00Z°% uoTSURd 000°8TL-8LP~20T
007052 00°0 007052 00°0 000 00°0§Z STqTIONPSE SOURINSUT T00°9TL-8LF-20T
00°00€“F €L°62 §5°T20°€E 96662 S7°8LZ'T 00'00€’? eoueInsul 23T7/TRITdson 000°9TL-8LY~20T
00°009 zL 6€ 89 °19¢ 69°79 Z€°8€C 00°009 A17IN09S TRTI0§ 000°STL~-8LY-20T
00°00Z°0T S€°8¢€ TE°882'9 8£°¥20'T 69°TT6'¢E 007002701 SWIL TT0d - TToxhed 000°20L-8LF-202
9OUPUSIUTEN I9IUTM - 8LF 23deq
00°060‘€E TL'ZE L57S9% 2T 6L°Z7ES'T £€7°729°0T 00°060’€E $90TAI®S DTFIRAL - §Lp 1ded TeIoL
00°00T‘ET 6TV PO TIE L 98°€62T 96788L’S 00°00T ‘€T si030eIjUOD " JUTRN 3 ITedoy 000 0E6-6L¥-20¢
00°005°2 ¥8 b 20°621°2 9z 06T 86°0LE 00°005°2 soTTddns @ouRUeIUTER ¥ ITRdey 000" SLL-GLY-Z0Z
00°00¢ 00°0 007005 00°0 00°0 007005 TT0 ¥ SUTTOSED 000°97L-5L7~20¢
00°02T 95762 €5°¥8 9€°6 LV"GE 00°02T 2IBOTPOH 000°22L-SLV~202
00°0FS 00°0 00°0%S 0070 00°0 00°07G UOTIRSUSAWOD S, TIYTOM 000°02L-SLy-20¢
00°005 ‘€ 96°5¢ LT'165°C LP"89T €L°806 00°005°¢€ UoTSURE 000°8TL-SLb-202
00°002 00°0 00002 00°0 00°0 007002 STqT3IOnpsQ OURINSUT T00°9TL=GLP-20Z
007009 '€ V92 6€°12L T ZLUSLT T9-8L8 00°009 ‘¢ 90URINSUI 2JTT/TRITASOH 000°9TL-GLb-20Z
00°0€S 65782 L9°8LE 00°0% €€°I6T 00°0€5 A3TIN09§ TRTO0S 000°STL-GLP~-202
0070058 0€°6Z 5976009 Z1°659 SE°067°C 00°005'8 ouwty TTMI - TT0Zhed 000°Z0L-SLP-20T
SO0TATOS OTFFRAL - §Ly 3deq
00°09¥ 82 T8 €€ 8L°LEG'ST £0°687°9 2272296 007097 ‘82 SOURUSIUTEH SUTANOY - €9F 1daq TeIol
00°000‘8 00779 00°088°¢ 00°02T‘S 00°021’s 00°000°8 sIojoexjuc) jutey ¥ xredsy 000 0E6-€97-202
00°00€°Z S€°9 S8 EST'Z 00°0 ST97T 00°00€°T s9TTddns 2OURULIUTER 3 ITedey 000" SLL-E97-20T
00°00€ 00°0 00°00€ 00°0 0070 00°00€ TTO 3 SUTTOSED 000°97L-£97-202
00°0ET L6°SZ ¥2°96 ¥S°6 9L €E 00°0€T SITOTPOR 000°22L-€9%-207
00°0LS 0070 00°0LS 00°0 0070 00°0LS uoTIRSUIWOD §,T3TOM 000°02L-£97-202
00°009 ‘€ TL°S2 ¥5°pL9 T 09°TLT 9" 626 007009 € uoTSUSG 000°8TL-£97-202
00°0TZ 00°0 00°0TT 00°0 00°0 00°0TZ 9TQTIANPOQ PDURINSUL 100" 9TL-E97-C0T
00°008“€E €1°€T 02°126°2 SLTSLT 08°8L8 00°008°€E eoueansuI ©ITT/Te3ITdsoH 000°9TL-£97-202
00056 0292 26° 50 9L 07 80°7¥T 00° 055 A2TIN085 TRPTO0S 000°STL-E9P-20T
00°000'6 82792 €0°929'9 8€°L99 L6 ELE’Z 0070006 suTL TInd ~ [Tordeq 000°20L-E9F-20Z
eouPUSIUTER BuUTANOY - £97 3deq
00°000°02T 97°L8 00°0S0’ST 00°0 007056 ‘POT 00°000'02T uoTIoNIISUOY - TSh 3ded TeIor
00°000°02T 97°L8 00°0S0°ST 00°0 007066 ‘70T 00°000°02T SI0}ORIIUCD "JUTEH 3 ITedey 000°0€6-TS7-202
UoTIONIZSUC) - TGy 3ded
soan) Tpuedxy
00°002’8LT Zv T 89 "¥8E ‘70T zT vIz'sT ZE'SIB'EL 00°00Z‘8LT SEONIATY TIOL
007002 8LT TP Th 89" ¥8E ‘70T Ze vIZ’ST ZESTBYEL 00°0028LT 000 3deq Telel
00°00278LT [ 474 89°%8€¥0T Ze viz’sT ZETSTB'EL 00°00Z'8LT TS I0¥ - s3jueas s3eis 000°97$-000-202
000 3dea
SINUBASY
AN LIFYLS YOLVW — 20Z pung
L32ang azsn {WIONEY) RION {¥03a) ¥ONI {WIONEY) WEON L9009 AEANIWNY NOILAI¥OSHA HBGHON TD
TENISTNO 190€ §  WONVTIVE TZ/0€/TT HINOW  2Z0Z/0E/TT €2-2202
€z-2z0c ATAYTIVAY ¥Od ALIAILOY HONYTIVE dLX
220Z/08/TT DNIOGNE QOI¥Ed AUSEUDIEd rEd
8§88 :I8s
21/6 :ebeg LNIWHOYYd J0 ALID ¥OJ IMOdT¥ FINLIANIAXE ANY dONIATI Wd 25321 2202/22/21




image11.jpg
(00021 '95) 207901 S8°5LE‘E 8ETF69 Y (687667 ‘65) {00°02195) STINLIANAIKT » SHONHARY 30 LEN

00°0Z€ ‘VEZ 68795 €8°800°10T 78°61S°0T LT TTE’EET 00°0zE‘PET SEUNLIANEAXE TYLOL
00°00Z“8LT [4 217 89°98E 70T 2z ¥1Z’ST TETST8 EL 00°00Z‘8LT < SENNIATE TYIOL
SONNA IAFILS MOLYW - Z0Z Pung

00°02e’vEe 68°9S £8°800'T0T 78 615 0T LT TIE EET 00°02€ 'PET STAOLIANAAKE TYIOL
00°02v ‘22 87" ¥ 78 %1712 ¥5°022 8T°S00'T 00°0Zv ‘2z UOTIBIISTUTUPY - z8F 3ded Te3ol
00000702 0070 007000702 0070 00°0 00700002 PEBOUIDAD SATIBAISTUTUPY 000°096-287-202
00702 oL"8€E 9z°21 ve-T vLL 00702 SIBOTPER 000°2ZL-287-202
00°ST 0070 00°ST 00°0 0070 00°ST uoT3ESURdUOD S, ISYTOM 000°02L-287-20¢
00°00% PLPE 8Z2°92€ [ 844 ZLTELT 00°00¢ uotTsuag 000°8TL-Z8¥-20T
00°0F 00°0 00°0% 0070 00°0 00°0% 2TqTIONPeQ POURINSUI T00°9TL~28F~202
00025 Lz Ly [aad %4 9T 6% 8LS¥C 00°02S souRINSUT SFTT/ T2} TASOH 000°9TL-28V-202
00°SL TT°9F 26TV 68°L 80" €€ 00°SL £31Inoes TeIDOS 000°STL-28¥-202
00°0SZ'T 65°€Y FT°S0L £5°62T 98P 00°0S2'T ewTr TINI - TToIked 000°20L-287-202

UOTIRIFSTUTWUPY ~ Z8% 3daq

00°06€‘0€ . A4 99°0¥C €T 87 185°1T PE60T L 00°05€‘0¢€ QOUPUSIUTEN I9IUTH - gLp Ided TelIoL

saInjTpuadxy
aNDd LIAILS HOLWH - 207 Puld

LEDANY agsn (WEONTY) WION (¥DEA) ¥WONI (WEONEY) JON LEDANE THANHWY NOIILdTYOSHA YIGAON IO
TYNIDTIO LOad % ADNVTVE 2¢/0€/TT HINOW 2Z0T/0€/1T [ XAdAA4 4
£2-220T ATEVITVAY W04 ALIAILOY IONVTIVE dLX

Juswyored :gd
§85 :assNn
Z1/9 :ebegq LNIWHOGYd 40 ALID 904 LYOdHd HINLTANHIXH ANV IONIAET Wd ZG:ZT 2Z202/22/21

2¢0Z/0€/TT SNIANA qOIJddd




image12.jpg
00°00S'T

00°00L LT

0070009
00°000'T
00°0ST
007089
00°00Z°%
00052
00°00% ‘%
007059
007007 ‘0T

00°099 ‘G2

00°009
00°000°S
007008
00°0¥T
007029
00°000°¥%
00°0s¢
00°0ST'%
007009
0070086

00006 ‘62

00°00F ‘S
00°00V°‘€E
00°00€
00°058T
007099
00°002°%
007052
00700V ‘7
007059
00°00S°0T

00°00E‘EL

00°00E ‘€L

00°00€’€L

LADANg
TYNIDTEO
€z-z20¢T

ci/L

€ 9¢

£€°GC

00°0
vLUTY
0L°9¢
0070
LE™BC
00°0
96782
0¢°9¢
€1°LE

SL'TC

000
9T° %2
00°0
6L ¥T
000
S€Tge
00°0
89702
L ve
06°¥%C

L8° 1€

L 68
0E" ¥
00°0
T1°%2
00°0
v0-2z
0070
L6°6T
8L EZ
zeTve

9T 1%

9T 1T¥

9T°1F

aasn
Load &

:obeq

0Z°556 157621 08778 00°005°T
96°289 °0Z £8°T95°T 70°LT0°L 00°00L°LZ
00°000°9 000 00°0 00°000°9
19°28S 00°0 6E°LTP 00°000°T
§6°76 8v°¥T §0°56 00°0ST
00°059 00°0 00°0 00°089
¥9°800°€ SL°0ZZ 9€°T6TT 00°002‘¥
00°0SZ 00°0 0070 00°05¢
9€7EPTE 65°18C $9°952'T 007007 ‘%
69771V 00729 TE"S€C 007059
TL'8ES’9 S0TETO'T 62°198°¢€ 00°00% ‘0T
90°8L0°0Z 1876201 ¥6°185’6 00099 ‘sz
00°009 00°0 00°0 00°009
06°T6L‘E 000 0T"802'T 00°000°S
007005 00°0 0070 00°00§
62°50T 816 TLVE 007071
007029 00°0 00°0 00°029
ZT°90T'E ST°99T 88°€68 0070007
00°05¢C 0070 00°0 007052
z17€e62'€ LE'TLT 887948 00°0ST’?
0L" TSk 1€°6€ 0€°8¥T 00°009
€6°6S€°L 08 €79 LO°0F7'T 00°008'6
LE'TLE'0Z £8°6Z0'D €9°825°6 00°006'6Z
0Z°655 08°99£°€E 08°7¥8'% 00°00%’S
€8°€5T°E 000 LT 97T 00°007’¢€
00°00€E 00°0 00°0 00°00€
€8°€TT £5°6 LT 9€ 00°0ST
00089 00°0 00°0 007089
€5°vLZ'E 19 TLT LY 526 00°00Z"F
00°052 00°0 0070 00052
12712 ' pLISLT 6L°8L8 00°00F 'V
S7°56% 9L"0F SS°PST 007089
ZETLSE L 6€°199 89°275°C 007005707
€9°92T €V LL'T6T’S LETELT0E 00°00€ ‘€L
£9°921°€¥ LL 16T 9 LETELTOE 00" 00€ ‘€L
€9°92T €l LL T6T'9 LE'ELT'OE 00°00€E‘EL

(HEONGY) WION
ADNVIVE
TTEVIIVAY

(40Ea) MONI
2C¢/0€/TT HINOW
¥Od ALIATIOY

LNEZWHOYVd dC ALID ¥04 LE0d¥d HINLIANIIXE ANY

(HYONEY) WION
220e/0€/11
HONYTVE JI&

220¢/0€/TT ONIONI dOI¥dEd

SWTL TTni - TToxAed 000°20L-28V-£02
UOTIeIISTUTWPY - 28y 3dea

SOURUSIUTEN ISJUTM - 8L 3deqg Teiol

ates 000" €SL-8LF-E0T

TTO 3 SUTTOSED 000°9¥7L-8LF-E0T
SIBDTPEH 000°2ZL-8LV-€02

uoTlesuadmo) S, ISYIOM 000°02L-8LP-E0C
uoTsUDJ 000°8TL-8L¥-£0C

2Tqrionpe esuURINSUL T00°9TL-8LY-E0C
eoueINSUT 9ITT/TeITASOH 000'9TL-8LF-£0Z
A3Tanosg TRIO0S 000°STL~8LF-£0C

Qwry TTNd - TToIAed 000°20L-8LF-E0C

SDURUSIUTRH I23UTM -~ 8LF 31daq

990TASS OTFFRAL - GLp 3deq Telol

$I030RIRUCD JUTER 3 Itedey 000" 0€6-GLF-£0T

soT1ddng oourusjuTRH 3 aTedsy 000" SLL-SLV-E0Z
TT0 2 surTOSEn 000°9¥L-GLF-E0Z

DILVTPOR 000°22L-SL¥-£0C

uoTIESURdWOD S, XOYIOM 000°0ZL-5L7-E0T
uotsued 000" 8TL-SL7-E0Z

STYTIONPBA SOUBINSUL T00°9TL-SLV—€02
soueansur °3TT/Te3rdsoH 000°9TL-GL7-£0T
£37a0098 TRTOOS 000°STL-SL7-£02

swrl TTnd - TTozkeq 000°Z0L-GLP-£0Z
seoTAzes OTIFRIL - SLp 3deq

@doUBRUSIUTEH dUTINOY - £9F 3ded [BIOL

SI030RIJUOD “JUTRH 3 aTeded 000°0€6-€97-€£02
sot11ddns eoueusiuTen 2 ATedsy 006" SLL-€97-€0C
TTO 3 2UTTOSEY 000°9¥L-E97-E0T

SIBOTPOR 000°Z2L-E97-E02

UOTIRSUBAWOD §,ISHION 000°0ZL-E97-£0Z
uoTSURG 000" 8TL-E97-E0T

TO0 9TL-€97-€0C
000°9TL-E97-E0C

2TqrIonped S0URINSUL
ooueansul eITI/TelTdsoH
A3tanoeg TeTO0§ 000°STL~E97-E0T

swry TT0d - [ToIAed 000°20L-€37-€0C
SOURUSUTEN 2UTINOY - £9p 1dsq

saang Tpuadxy

SHANIATE TYLOL

000 3dea Te3or

TG 0¥ - sjuRID 93e3s 000°975-000-£0¢
000 3deq
ssnusasy

aNOd LEFELS TYD0T — £0Z PUld

LADANE THANINY
£2-220¢

NOILJI¥DSIEA HIGAON TD

Juswyoxed :gd
$8$ a98N

AONIATE Wd ZS:21 2202/22/21




image13.jpg
(00°626 "2€} 8L 1T {69596 ‘6€) (G2°050°T) 697070 'L (00°526 ‘2€) STINLIANIIXI 3 SEONHATY A0 LAN

007622901 8L°12 z€260’e8 [ IxAZANA 89°CET'ET 00°522'90T SHENLTIANIAXT TELOL
00°00E ‘€L 9T T¥ €9°921'¢EV LLTT6T*9 LEELT'OE 00°00€ ‘€L SEANIATI TYIOL
SANOE LBEYLS TYO0T - €02 pund

00°522°90T 8L°12 2£°260°€8 20°2%Z’L 89°ZET €T 007622901 STYNLIANAIKE TYIOL
00°696°2Z 8E° ¥ £6°656°'12 167022 L0°500°T 0059622 UOTARIISTUTUPY - g8y 3dea Te3ol
007000702 0070 00700002 00°0 00°0 007000702 PEIUISAQ SATIRIISTUTUDY 000°096-28%-£0C
00°s¢ 26°0¢€ Le Lt £€8°T €L°L 00752 SIBDTPIN 000°ZcL-287-£0C
00°ST 0070 00°ST 00°0 0070 00°ST UoT1esURdUo) S, ISYIOM 000°02L-Z87-€0C
00°529 6L°LZ TETISY [A R4 697€ELT 007829 uoTsusd 000°8TL-Z8V-€£0T
00708 0070 00708 0070 00°0 00°0S STATIONPSJ SdURIRSUT T00"9TL-Z8%-E02
007059 18°LE £2°F0F 9T 6% LL'S%T 007059 ®oueInsul 93T/ TeITASOH 000°9TL-287-£0Z
00°00T 80 €€ 76799 68" L 80°€€ 00°00T A3Tanoes TRTD0S 000 GTL-ZBY-€0T

ssanlTpusdxy

ANOE JEAELS TED0T - €07 pundg

139004 azsn (HIONEY) WEON (¥0Ed) ¥ONI (HEONEY) HWION LI900d QEANIRY NOILdT¥DSHA SHERON D
TYNIDINO 1904 § HONVTVE ¢Z/0€/TT HLNOW zz0T/0e/1T £€2-2202
€2-2202 ETEVITYAY ¥M0d ALIATIOV FONVIVE dIX

jusuysaed 4dd
§88 :a°sn
21/8 :ebeq LNEWNHOYYd 40 ALID ¥O4 L¥0d¥d HYOLIANEdXE ANV HNANIATI Wd ZG:21 2202/22/21

2¢0Z/0€/1T ONIANI JOoI¥dd




image14.jpg
00" FST'TTT 09°6v¢  (0L"¥82°99T) 00°0 0L 8EV’LLT 00°7ST'ITT SHANLIANAAXT 3 SEONAAHY A0 LAN

00°9%T 88T LS°0 00°180°L8T 0070 00°590°T 00°9%T°88T STANLTANIIXT TELOL
00°00€ 662 G0°€6 0€°96L°02 00°0 0L"€05'8LZ 00°00€’662 SUNNHATY TYLOL
sjusudoTeASPaY PISTIUMCIL ~ [GZ PUNL

00°9VT 88T LS50 00°180“L8T 00°0 00°5§90°T 00°971°88T STENLIANAAXE TYIOL
00°9%T /88T LS°0 00°T80°L8T 00°0 00°5630°T 00°9%T'88T 000 2dea T®30L
00°€15’6 00°0 00°€TS ‘6 00°0 00°0 00°€15°6 osusdxy }S9I97UL 000°566-000-152
00°€€9 ‘8% 00°0 00°€€9 ‘8F 00°0 00°0 00°€£978% TedTOUTIZ-1USWBITI®Y 1q8Q 000°T66-000-TSZ
00°00070€T 00°0 00°000 ‘0ET 00°0 00°0 00°000°0€T PRIYISAQ SATIRIISTUTWRY 000°096-000-T5Z
00°0 00°00T  (00°590°T) 000 00°620'T 00°0 ‘AT3§ TPNIORIIUCD/TRUOTSSDIOIL 000°008-000-152
000 adea

saanjTpuedxy

00°00€’662 S0°€6 0£796L°02 0070 0L7£06'8LZ 00°00€’66¢ SHENNIATE TYIOL
00°00€ ‘662 S0°€6 CE"96L°0Z 00°0 0L°€05'8LZ 00°00£ ‘662 000 3deq TE3OL
00°0 00°00T  {00°22Z‘2) 0070 00°zZT’T 0070 SNOSURTTROSTH 000" $69-000-TSZ
00°00€’662 T€°26 0E"8T0'€C 0070 0L'18Z'9LZ 00 00€ ‘662 onueasy xel 000" ¥0¥-000-15¢
000 1dea

sanuaAdY

JusudoT2ASPaY PTITIUMOTE ~ TGZ PUNL

LESANg agsn (HIONEY) WION {¥0EA) ¥WONT (WEONEY) WION LESANT GEANINY NOTILATYOSIAA YIFHAN T
TYNIDTHO I2ad % ADNVIVE 2Z/0€/TT HINOW 2202/0€/1T €2-2e0e
£¢-220e FTEVIIVAY H0d ALIAILOY HIONV'IVE dLA
Z2Z0Z/0€/TT ONIGNA AOIdud JusuyoIed 1dd
SSS :Ix8sn

z1/6 :sbea LNIAWHDOYYd J0 AITID ¥0d I904d¥ HINITANTAXHE ANV AANTATT Wd ZS:gT ¢Tz0g/ec/Tt




image15.jpg
00°0 8T'1T (E€°8G8 ‘GET) 00°0 {L9°€60°LT) (007256 ‘25T) STUNITANIAXE 3 SHONHAHY 0 LEN

00°0 80°ET 007256 ‘2€T 00°0 00700002 007256 ‘29T SETANLIANEIXE TYLOL
00°0 00°C0T (€€°906‘2) 00°0 €€°906°Z 00°0 SUNNTATE TYIOL

pung juers sNINWIIS - G8Z pung

00°0 80°€T 00°2S6 ‘2eT 00°0 00°000°02 007256 °2ST SEANLIANIAKE TYLIOL
00°0 80°ET 00°256 “2ET 0070 00700002 00256 ‘25T 000 3doQ Te3lol
00°0 0T°62¢  (00°878°€T) 0070 00°000°02 00°2ST’9 Pung IVYIO O3 I9FSUBI] 000°666-000-58¢
0070 0070 00°008°9%T 600 00°0 00°008°9%T “AZSS TRNIDRIIUOD/TRUCTSSITOId 000°008-000-682
000 3dsq

soan3 tpuadxyg

00°0 00°00T (€€°906“2) 00°0 ££°906°C 00°0 SANNIATY TYLOL
00°0 00°00T {£€°906°2) 00°0 €€°906°C 00°0 000 3dad Teilol
00°0 00°00T  (E€°906°2) 0070 €£7906°C 0070 SNOSURTTEISTH 000°769-000-58Z
000 adeq

sanusA3d

puni jueld SOTONTLS - G8Z Pung

LE9and aasn (WIONEY) HEON (¥2EQ) ¥ONI {WEONEY) WON LEDANE TAANINYT NOILdI¥DSHA FIAHON T
TYNIOTHO L0049 % HONVIVE Z2Z/0€/1T HINOW 2202/0€/1T £€¢-220¢
€2-220¢ HTEVTIIVAY ¥0Ad ALIAILOY FONYTIVE dLX

queuryored :dd
$SS ra9sn
ZL/01T  9beqd LNEWHDYYd A0 ALID ¥0d 1d0ddd HMALIANIAdXE ANY EONIATY Wd 26:¢T czoz/ze/en

2202/0€/TT ONIGNA qOIddd




image16.jpg
00°0 00°00T  {00°0L8‘LT) (00027 “2) 00°048°LT 00°0
00°000°S 0668 00°500°Z 00°0Z6°Z 00°666°C 00°000°S
0070005 0€°LTy  {00°698°ST) 00°00§ 00°598°0Z 00°000°S
00°000°S 06°65 00°500Z 00°026°2 0075662 00°000°S
00°000°S 06765 0075002 00°026°C 00°566°C 00°000°S
00°000°s 60°0 00°000°G 00°0 00°0 00°000°G
00°0 00°00T (007026 'z} 0070262 00°026°¢ 00°0
000 00°00T  (00°SL) 0070 00°SL 00°0
00°000°S 0E"LTF  (00°598°ST) 00°005 00759802 00°000°5
00°000°S 0E°LTP  (00°598°ST) 007005 0059802 00°000°G
00°0 00°00T (00" ¥0Z’0Z) 0070 00°70Z°0Z 00°0
00°000°S 2z €T 00°6€€’% 007005 00°199 00°000'S
1I9a0g azsn (HEONEY) WEON (¥0=Ed) ¥ONI (HEONSTY) FHON 139008 GEANERY
TINIOINO 1509 & HONVIVE TT/OE/TT HINOW  ZZ0Z/0E/TT €2-2202
£¢-2202 FTIVIIVAY ¥OJd - ALTATIOV HONVTVE dLX

21/1T  iebeq

LNIWHOEYd

2202/0€/TT ONIGNT QOI¥dd

A0 ALID d0d L¥0dHd SENLIANIIXA ANV HONIATE

STUNIIANTIXT ? SHONIATI A0 IEN

STMINLIANIIXT TYIOL
SHNNIATE TVLOL
ipund TETIOWSH §,URISISA — [0y Pung

SHENLIANIdXE TYLOL

000 3deq 1e30L

SNOSUBTTSOSTH
“ATDE TEN}DEIIUC)/[RUCTSSSI0Id
s977ddng SoUBUSAUTEN ¥ ITedey

000°556-000-T0¥%
000°008-000-T0¥
000°SLL-000-T0F
000 3dsa
saanlrpuadxy

SHNNIATE TYIOL

000 3deqg Te30L

SNOSUBTTSISTH 000°769-000-1T0F

enusAsy TeITdR) PIINGTIJUC) 000 7L9-000-T0%
000 3daa

senusazy

pund TRTIOWSH $,UeIslsp - [0F PULT

NOILAT¥DSHA YIAAON T2

JusuydIed gd
§S§ :I9s0
Wd 2G:ZT 2202/22/21




image17.jpg
00°5T0°9Z 79°GEE  (60°98T1°924) (L6°7LE 98T) 60107507 (00°68L°02T) STUNIIANTAXT 3 SEANIATY IO LEN

00°s8v‘LeT’e £€6°08 0L°888'2ZLT 1 8E°9¥8‘TTZ 0E°8YSLIT'T 00°LEV‘06E°T SANAA TTY - STIALIANIAXE TYLIOL
00°005°€92'2 T8 TL T19°20L°9%9 1A 20 VR AN T4 6£°676°229'T 007259 ‘69Z°¢C SANAI TIY - SENNAATE TYIOL
00°00z°‘€ 6L°P0T'T TZ°€66°8€ (€9°€€2%2) (Tz ese’se) 00°00Z°¢€ STINLIANIAKE » SHEONFATY 0 LEN
00°00L 9¥FT 67°FL 697227 'LE €9°€ET VT TE'LLZ 60T 00°00L79%T STUNITANTIXT TYLOL
00°0066¥%T TET6Y 06°GL6°SL 0c°o0 0T ¥Z6 €L 007006 ‘67T SHANAAHY TYLOL

aNNd ¥EMAS - 065 pung

00°00L9%T 60 VL 69220 ‘LE £9°€€2’ve TE°LLZ'60T 00°00L‘9%T STINLIANTAXKH TYLIOL
00°00L“9¥%T 67 VL 69°22p‘LE £9°g€2’ve TE"LLZ'60T 00°00L°9%T 000 1deg TElOL
00°00T ‘7T 0070 00°00T“7T 00°0 00°0 00°00T’¥vT uotieToRIdeq 000°896-000-06S
00°000°0F 00°0 00°000°0% 00°0 0070 00°000°0% PESYISA0 SATIRIISTUTWRY 000°096-000-065
00°000°0T 0070 607000701 00°0 00°0 00°00070T SI010BI7UOH"UTEY 3 ITedey 000°0£6-000-06%
00°00€’z 98°5% ZETSPZIT 867722 89°FS0°T 00°00€°Z S9TITITIN 000°026-000-06%
007009 ‘0T S6°EL 00°19L'2 00°0 00°6€8°L 007009 70T spuog 3 edueansuy 000°0T6-000-06%
007005 0070 007005 0070 00°0 00°00§ TeIUey WIoFTUR 000°ST8-000-065
00°000°52 66°€vE (05786609} 0L GL80T 0586668 00°000°52 TAISE TRNIDRIIUOD/TRUCTSSSI0I 000°008-000-065
©0°00€ LS 9€ CE"06T 26°5¢ 0L°60T 00°00€ 2IBDTPAN 000°2ZL-000-065
00°00S 00°0 00°00S 00°0 00°0 00005 uoTyesuadwod s, Ie}TOM 000°0ZL-000-06S
00°00€’6 SvLT TULPLS 65 TLY 6872552 00°00€‘6 uoTsURg 000°8TL-000-06S
00°00L 000 00°00L co"e 00°0 00°00L 21qTIONPOq P9URINSUT T00°9TL-000-06S
0070006 6L°8€ Z1°605°S ST°869 887067 ‘€ 0070006 @ouRINSUT 2FTT/TRITdSOH 00079TL-000-06S
007007 ‘T 05°€€ 66°0€6 287 0TT 107697 00°00% ‘T A3TaIN09S TRTOOS 000 STL-000-06S
007000°¢€Z SLTEE SETLET'ST L8°928°1 §9°29L L 00°000°€C WL TING - TTo%hed 000°20L-000-065
000 1daa

saInjyTpusdxm

00°006‘6¥%T CET 6T 06°GL6“SL 00°0 01" %26 ‘€L 00°006 67T SHNNIATY TVIOL
007006 ‘6¥T 2L 6V 06°5L6°GL 00°0 0T ¥T6‘EL 00°006‘6FT 000 3deg TE3OL
60°006°T 00°0 007006 ‘T 00°0 000 00°006°T SIUBWISRAUT U0 }§3I23UT 000°99~-000-065
00°000°8%T S6°6¥ 06°GL0 L 00°0 0T"¥26 €L 00°000'8¥T SSOTATBS I8MES 000°929-000-06¢
000 2dsq

SONUADY

aNAd J9IMIS - 065 PUnI

Laoand aqasn (FEONEY) WJION (¥03a) ¥ONI (WEONEY) WNON LEDANE CIANINT NOILATAOSHA MIEWAN TD
TUNISTEO 1909 $  HEONVIVE 2Z/0€/1T HINOH  £Z0Z/0€/1T £2-2202
£Z-220Z HTEVIIVAY 04 ALTATILOV IDNYTVd dILX
220Z/0€/1T ONIANE d0I¥dd AR LRd, FHA
SSS :aesn

Z1/21 :obea INIWHDYYd A0 ALID 904 I¥OdH¥ TYNLIANIAAXT OINY HONTATI WA 2G:¢T 2202/22/21




image18.jpg
City of Parchment
2022 Kindleberger Festival Budget

Revenue
Arts/crafts
Race/walk fees
Membership drive
Concessions/Spec event
Corporate Sponsorships
Bingo for Bags/Fri Night Event
Car Show Proceeds
Grants - Gilmore & Upjohn
Mlscellaneous

o

Expenses
Performance Expense
Arts/crafts

Children's area
Race/walk
Fundraising events
Festival Admin

Stage Entertainment/concerts
Miscellaneous

Car Show expenses
Publicity

$

$

Prior Year r Prior Year I Budget l Actual 1
Budget 2022

Actual

" 2,864.32
5,562.69
5,314.52

18,600.00
16,585.40

35,000.00
8423152 $

84,231.52 $

Prior Year

Actual

19,958.70
13,271.43
1,309.64
6,095.80
1,500.00
16,718.89
10,800.00
25.00

2, 753 59

7243305 $

72,433.05 $

11,798.47

"3,100.00 £S5

As of 12/22/22

3,400.00- B

500000 I 7,203.00 [B
180000 f$ . 2,405.00 1B
1,580.00 Is

1,040.00

5868000 '$ 75,728,

58,680.00 $ 75,728.00 | $ 87,485.04

Prior Year Budget Actual
Budget 2022

As of 12/22/22

oo |87 431.14

80.49
1,770.83
5,333.41
1,233:12

1,600.00 §S$ - 1,900.00

a,10000 B 5,800.00
1,030.00 % : ,
10,565.00 w%ns oo [H
15,200.00 ‘FEERE8;200.00 783
2,85000 f . 2,200.00 E‘ - 2,603.28
-} arso00f . -510.80
s165.00 [ 7,865.00 E 7,420,91
58,680.00 $ 75 728.00. $ .83, 329.54

58,680.00 $ 75,728.00 | S 83,329.54

- $  4,155.50





image19.jpg
KALAMAZOO AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY POLICY COMMITTEE

CALLTO ORDER

Minutes of the October 26, 2022 Meeting

The October 26, 2022 Policy Committee Meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m. at Metro in
Kalamazoo, by Treasurer Rob Britigan in Chairperson Thompson’s stead.

INTRODUCTIONS

Introductions were made by all present.

ROLL CALL

Meeting attendance was recorded on the sign-in sheet.

MEMBERS PARTICIPATING

Curtis Aardema
Rob Britigan, Treasurer
Marsha Drouin
John Gisler

Jeff Heppler

Lisa Imus

Martin Janssen
Joanna Johnson
Greg Kinney

Judy Lemon

Tracy Locey

Pat McGinnis
Sherine Miller
Chris Praedel
Pete Pfeiffer

Jeff Sorensen

Paul Sotherland
Don Ulsh

Jerry VanderRoest

MEMBERS ABSENT

Jeff Franklin

Tim Frisbie

Libby Heiny-Cogswell
Robert Henderson

Nick Loeks

Randy Thompson, Chair

OTHERS PARTICIPATING
Ryan Minkus

Central County Transportation Authority
City of Parchment

Richland Township

Kalamazoo County

Village of Augusta

Village of Lawton

Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
Road Commission of Kalamazoo County

Van Buren County Road Commission

City of Galesburg

Brady Township

City of Portage

Kalamazoo Township

City of Kalamazoo

Michigan Department of Transportation, TSC
Cooper Township

KATS Citizens Advisory Committee
Schoolcraft Township

Charleston Township

Michigan Department of Transportation, Planning
Village of Vicksburg

Oshtemo Township

Van Buren Public Transit

Texas Township

Comstock Township

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County

PC Minutes 10/26/22 Page 1of 6




image20.jpg
Fred Nagler Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

Dennis Randolph City of Kalamazoo

Elizabeth Rumick Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Steve Stepek Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Ali Townsend Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

Stepek would like to add to the New Business section of the meeting nomination of a new
Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Citizen Advisory Committee member. Additionally, guest
Traffic Engineer Dennis Randolph from the City of Kalamazoo will update attendees and answer

questions regarding City of Kalamazoo traffic. Britigan summarized these two items will be number

16 A and number 16 B on the agenda, respectively.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Heppler moved, and it was duly seconded by Johnson, “to approve the agenda of the October 26,

2022 Palicy Committee Meeting noting that two additional items will be discussed under New
Business.” MOTION CARRIED.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No citizens’ comments were made.

CONSENT AGENDA

-ACCEPTANCE OF THE TREASURER’S REPORTS

-ACCEPTANCE OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE REPORTS

-ACCEPTANCE OF THE SOUTHCENTRAL MICHIGAN PLANNING COUNCIL REPORTS
-APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 28, 2022 MEETING

Sorensen moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to accept and approve the items on the
Consent Agenda.” MOTION CARRIED,
FY 2023 - 2026 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AMENDMENTS

Stepek explained the proposed amendments are included in the meeting packet. Stepek noted the
updated list of amendments. KATS Staff and Technical Committee recommends approval of the
proposed amendments.

Aardema moved, and it was duly seconded by Janssen, “to approve the FY 2023-2026
Transportation Improvement Program Amendments.” MOTION CARRIED.
2023 SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Stepek explained the performance measures are included in the packet. Annually, as part of the
required federal performance measures, Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) is asked to

either develop its own safety targets for the coming calendar year or to support the state targets. In

previous years, KATS has chosen to support the state targets. It was noted these are measures not
goals. Johnson thanked Stepek for providing matrix data on the KATS Metropolitan Planning
Organization region. In response to Johnson’s inquiry, Stepek responded the MPO level data mirrors
state trends. Stepek answered in response to Britigan’s question, if we do not meet the measure we
would be required to spend at least what the state was spending on the measure in 2008-2009. The

PC Minutes 10/26/22 Page 2 of 6

w




image21.jpg
state is already spending at least that amount or more for every measure. Janssen and Heppler
commented about how the three E's: Engineering, Education, and Enforcement impact safety.
Johnson, Gisler, Praedel, and McGinnis discussed other crash data as well as their respective
municipality patrol deputy staffing levels. The Technical Committee recommended supporting the
state safety targets at their October 13, 2022 meeting. Staff recommends that the Policy Committee
adopt the state targets as documented and autharize the Chair to sign the Resolution of Support for
2022 Safety Targets on behalf of the Policy Committee.

Heppler moved, and it was duly seconded by Sorensen, “to approve adoption of the 2023 State
Safety Performance Measures and to authorize the Chair to sign the Resolution of Support.”
MOTION CARRIED.

2023 POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE

Referring to the schedule included in the packet, Stepek added that the schedule proposes
continuation of the traditional last Wednesday of the month and 9:00 a.m. meeting day and time.

Johnson moved, and it was duly seconded by Janssen, “to approve the Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study 2023 Policy Committee Meeting Schedule.” MOTION CARRIED.

2023 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AMENDMENT SCHEDULE

Stepek stated the TIP Amendment schedule is included in the packet for your information. Although
this is the official amendment approval schedule, Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Staff are able
to add additional amendments if needed. i

CONTRIBUTED SERVICES FISCAL YEAR 2022

Stepek pointed out City of Parchment time sheets found in a spam email folder were added. The
final contributed service for fiscal year 2022 has been cut off for the Kalamazoo Area Transportation
Study’s fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. We collected more than double the required match
for the year and appreciate all participating agencies that turned in time sheets. This serves as a
reminder to please continue strong participation by turning in time sheets for our fiscal year 2023
which began on October 1, 2022.

NOMINATION SUBCOMMITTEE FOR KATS OFFICERS !

Stepek explained Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) has a Subcommittee to assist with
obtaining KATS Officers. This group solicits volunteers to run for the one-year officer terms. Officers
are nominated at the December meeting for terms that begin January 1 every year. Officer positions
include Chair, Vice-Chair, and Treasurer. Current officers are welcome to serve another year.
Sorensen and Ulsh volunteered to serve on the Nemination Subcommittee for KATS Officers.

MecGinnis moved, and it was duly seconded by Johnson, “to approve nomination of Don Ulsh and

Jeff Sorensen for the Subcommittee for Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Officers.” MOTION
CARRIED.

PC Minutes 10/26/22 Page 3of 6




image22.jpg
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION UPDATES

Aardema reported Ron Holcum is a new board member for Kalamazoo County Transportation
Authority (KCTA). Metro's Comprehensive Operational Analysis {COA} consultant will be presenting
recommendations December 12, 2022. Microtransit may potentially serve areas of Kalamazoo
County that have less fixed route buses. The governance update continues. An outside consultant
was hired to suggest best practices on the structure of the joint Central County Transportation
Authority (CCTA}/KCTA board. Metro's Youth Mobility program is progressing well. The program
operates in partnership with the Foundation for Excellence and the Kalamazoo Public Schools. it
offers free bus passes to a limited number of Kalamazoo Public High School students for
transportation to and from jobs or after school activities. Metro’s new security staff member at the
Kalamazoo Transportation Center (KTC) is a very successful addition. Monthly safety reports are
distributed. Metro’s goal is to keep the KTC as safe as possible. Staffing levels are trending toward
pre-COVID levels. Similarly, bus routes are functioning at near pre-COVID levels. The trend of rising
ridership on buses is expected to continue.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

In addition to what was reported in the mema included in the meeting materials, Stepek highlighted

the Metropolitan Planning Organization area will receive about $1.6 million dollars in the annual 1
redistribution of obligation authority. With the new Bipartisan Infrastructure law adopted during !
2022, loca! agencies were not able to spand all their transportation authority. The Michigan !
Department of Transportation is therefore giving more obligation authority this year to local

agencies. Our region would need about $4-35 million dollars to come closer to the federal required

75/25 project cost split. Therefore, no Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) amendments are

expected from the additional funds. The Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) TIP

Subcommittee including KATS, the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County, the Cities of Kalamazoo,

Portage, and Parchment met. It was decided to use the funds for projects that have already been ]
obligated in fiscal year 2023. Some of the funds will be allocated to Metro transit to assist in the cost

increase of buses from the contracted $109,000 to $179,000. The remainder of the funds will be split

equally between the City of Kalamazoo Whites Road project and the City of Portage Portage Road

project. Johnson asked for clarification on the projects being in fiscal year 2023. Stepek concurred

adding that since we are already in fiscal year 2023, the best way to spend the money is to use it on

projects that are ready to go rather than add a project that may not be obligated. In response to

Britigan, Stepek added, the funds have to be obligated this year, meaning the feds have promised to

pay that amount. The funds do not need to be spent this year. Stepek responded to Aardema’s

inquiry that the City of Portage Portage Road project is in front of the Pfizer facility.

NEW BUSINESS

Britigan reiterated there are two items of New Business. The first one is a recommendation to
appoint James Justice to the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Citizen Advisory Committee.
Justice’s application was distributed for review.

Sorensen moved, and it was duly seconded by Johnson, “to approve nomination of James Justice to ’
the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Citizen Advisory Committee.” MOTION CARRIED.

Britigan stated the second item of New Business is to welcome Dennis Randolph, City of Kalamazoo
Traffic Engineer, to discuss the city’s traffic and answer any questions. Randolph distributed a U.S.

PC Minutes 10/26/22 Page 4 of 6




image23.jpg
Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration Vulnerable Road User Safety
Assessment Guidance packet. Randolph elaborated that the three E’s: Engineering, Education, and
Enforcement are important to safety. Street configuration in the City of Kalamazoo has decreased
lane width which has been shown to decrease speed. Sixty-percent of all crashes are speed-related.
Kalamazoo has eliminated traffic lanes, added marked bike lanes, and added pedestrian signs in an
attempt to decrease vehicle speed. The City of Kalamazoo abtained a $250,000 grant for traffic signal
optimization. The study will begin in 2023 with hopes of improved signal progression. Further
discussion ensued.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No citizens’ comments were made,

MEMBER COMMENTS

Sotherland, Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Citizens Advisory Committee, voiced praise he has
received for the Kalamazoo region’s infrastructure overall, not just related to non-motorized
progress, including engineering, planning and implementation. Sotherland pleaded that striping and
signs be installed before a road project is deemed complete. This would assist with the Education
portion of the three E's to guide people through an area.

Praedel thanked Randolph for the presentation. The City of Kalamazoo Kalamazoo Avenue two-way
conversion update will be forthcoming in the next couple of weeks. Parkview is open. The
preliminary reduction in speed on Westnedge and Park is a significant 4.8 miles-per-hour. Praedel
thanked jurisdictions who assisted and supported the City of Kalamazoo during the funeral of Public
Safety Officer Christian Smith.

McGinnis, City of Portage, reiterated the importance of regional traffic signal optimization.
Optimization should cross city limits and efforts between jurisdictions should be coordinated.

Aardema commented students from the University of Notre Dame performed a traffic analysis for a
class project on a Sunday morning en Michigan Avenue in the City of Kalamazoo. One car was
clocked on radar at 82 miles-per-hour. Multiple cars were traveling over 70 miles-per-hour, well in
excess of the posted speed limit. As a member of the Kalamazoo/Battle Creek International Airport
board, Aardema reported new air service on Avelo Airlines direct to Orlando begins today. Due to
clean-up issues from Hurrican lan, Avelo was told to delay service into Ft. Myers, Avelo will begin
direct flights to Ft. Myers later this season or next winter.

VanderRoest reminded attendees of the November 8, 2022 election. The Charleston Township
building is undergoing construction for an addition and remodeling. It currently has no heat.
Meetings have been taking place in the parking lot. Electricians, plumbers, and other contractors are
working to hopefully finish by election day.

Heppler announced the Village of Augusta 2024 bridge project engineering is underway. The Village
is working on a water main project but finding delays of up to 50 weeks in obtaining pipe.

Kinney announced the Van Buren County Road Commission {VBCRC) Managing Director is leaving in
February 2023. VBCRC is looking to fill the position which requires a candidate live within 60 miles of
the Van Buren County Line.

Britigan, City of Parchment, reminded attendees to vote November 8, 2022.

PC Minutes 10/26/22 Page 5 of 6




image24.jpg
Sorensen thanked the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County, and cooperation of the City of
Kalamazoo, and the City of Parchment for assistance in completion of the water main pipe project in
Cooper Township. This restaration project began with a phone call in July 2018 regarding residents
that had PFAS in their water. Sorensen expressed happiness and thankfulness for completion.
Invitations to the Michigan Township Association banquet were sent. Let Sorensen know if you did
not receive an invitation and would like to attend,

Ulsh, Schooleraft Township, asked what will happen with Sprinkle Road traffic now that the
Kalamazoo Regional Educational Service Agency (KRESA) broke ground on the new career and
technical center. Johnson of the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County stated it will be very busy.
Aardema noted it is a City of Kalamazoo road. Randolph added that the City of Kalamazoo has gone
through the site plan planning process with the developer. Johnson reiterated the importance of
ensuring adjacent jurisdictions work together on projects.

Janssen mentioned traffic has been backing up recently on the Sprinkle Road roundabout south of |-
94. Pfeiffer can follow-up on any information from the Michigan Department of Transportation
Kilgore office.

Johnson reported the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County {RCKC) has 18 projects to finish up
across the county, weather permitting. RCKC permanently closed the TS Avenue bridge between
29 and 31% streets in Pavilion Township and the 40" Street bridge between W Avenue and X
Avenue in Wakeshma Township. RCKC thanks townships for partnering to potentially identify a third
bridge to bundle for state rehab funding. Attendees are invited to a public hearing on November 8,
2022 that will include RCKC primary road Capital Improvement Plan and budget guidelines.
Feedback or attendance is appreciated. A communication survey has been distributed to identify
RCKC preferred communication methods. RCKC team members are currently in winter maintenance
training. There are quite a few new staff members, but RCKC is at least 11 people short for winter
road maintenance. RCKC is hosting Brakes on Fatalities Day on November 8, 2022, Awards will be
presented to young artists aged 3 — 14 years old at 5:00 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Treasurer Britigan adjourned the meeting at 10:13 a.m.

The next meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Policy Committee will be held on
Wednesday, November 30, 2022 at 9:00 a.m.

Approved 12/21/22 fer)

PC Minutes 10/26/22 Page 6 of 6




image25.jpg
Prein&Newhof

Engineers aSurveyors w Environmental « Laboratory

Sent via email: manager@parchment.org
December 5, 2022

Ms. Nancy Stoddard

City Manager

City of Parchment

650 South Riverview Drive
Parchment, MI 49004-1298

RE:  Engineering Services Letter of Engagement (2023) |
Dear Ms. Stoddard:

Prein&Newhof is pleased to present our Professional Services Agreement to provide as needed
engineering services to the City of Parchment. P&N will provide engineering services as
requested by the City Administration. If such services are not directly related to a specific project
that has a separate agreement with the City to provide professional services, then we propose to
perform these services at our normal hourly rates plus expenses billed monthly (current fee
schedule attached).

If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign and return the Professional Services
Agreement as authorization to proceed. If you have any questions, please contact our office.

Sincerely,

Prein&Newhof

MAS:dlj £

Enclosures:  Professional Services Agreement (2 pg.) Terms & Conditions (3 pg.)
Fee Schedule (1 pg.)

1707 South Park Street, Suite 200 Kalamazoo, MI 49001 t. 269-372-1158 f. 616-364-6955 www.preinnewhof.com

R:\PRP - Proposal Preparation\City of Parchmentiprp 2022-12-05 Stoddard, Naney (2023 Engr Services Letter of Engagement).docx

i
|
|
|
i
i
i




image26.jpg
Prem&Newhof

EngineersaSurveyors w Environmental « Laboratory

Project No.

Professional Services Agreement

This Professional Services Agreement is made this day of , 2022
(“Agreement”) by and between Prein & Newhof, Inc. (“P&N”), of 1707 South Park Street, Suite
200, Kalamazoo, MI 49001, and City of Parchment (“Client”), of 650 South Riverview Drive,
Parchment, MI49004-1298.

WHEREAS Client intends to:
Obtain as needed Engineering Services.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, the
parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Client and P&N each designate the following individuals as their representatives with respect to
the Project.

For P&N For Client
Name: Michael A. Schwartz, P.E. Name: Nancy Stoddard
Title: Project Manager Title: City Manager
Phone Number: (269) 372-1158 Phone Number: (269) 349-3785
Facsimile Number: (616) 364-6955 Facsimile Number: (269) 345-5441
Email: mschwartz@preinnewhof.com Email: manager@parchment.org

ARTICLE 2 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

This Agreement consists of this Professional Services Agreement and the following documents
which by this reference are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.
P&N Standard Terms and Conditions for Professional Services

X P&N Proposal dated December 5, 2022

[0 P&N Standard Rate Schedule

[0 P&N Supplemental Terms and Conditions
[7 Other:

ARTICLE 3 — ENGINEERING SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT:
Client hereby requests, and P&N hereby agrees to provide, the following services:

X P&N Scope of Services per Proposal dated December 5, 2022

3355 Evergreen Drive, NE Grand Rapids, M1 49525 t. 816-364-8491 f 616-364-6955 www.preinnewhofcom
Template date: Qctober 28, 2015 Page 1 of 2




image27.jpg
[0 Scope of Services defined as follows:

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION:

O Lump Sum for Services Described in Article 3 above - $___ .

Additional services to be billed per P&N’s Standard Rate Schedule in effect on the date
the additional service are performed.

X Hourly Billing Rates plus Reimbursable Expenses per P&N’s Standard Rate Schedule in effect
on the date services are performed.

O Other:

ARTICLE 5 - ADDITIONAL TERMS (If any)
None

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between P&N and Client and supersedes all prior
written or oral understandings. This Agreement may not be altered, modified or amended, except
in writing properly executed by authorized representatives of P&N and Client.

Accepted for: Accepted for:
Prein&Newhof, Inc. City of Parchment

By: By:
Printed Name: Thomas C. Wheat, P.E. Printed Name:

Title: Office Manager Title:
Date: Date:

Bill To/Ship To (if different)
Name:
Company:
Address:

Ph:
Fx: |
Email:

Template date: October 28. 2015 Page 2 of 2




image28.jpg
Standard Terms & Conditions

A. General - As used in this Prein&Newhof Standard Terms and Conditions for Professional Services (hereinafter “Terms and
Conditions”), unless the context otherwise indicates: the term “Agreement” means the Professional Services Agreement
inclusive of all documents incorporated by reference including but not limited to this P&N Standard Terms and Conditions
for Professional Services; the term “Engineer” refers to Prein & Newhof, Inc.; and the term “Client” refers to the other party
to the Professional Services Agreement.

These Terms and Conditions shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the United States of America and by the laws of
the State of Michigan.

B. Standard of Care - The standard of care for all professional and related services performed or furnished by Engineer under
the Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of Engineer’s profession of ordinary learning, judgment
or skill practicing under the same or similar circumstances in the same or similar community, at the time the services are
provided.

C. Disclaimer of Warranties - Engineer makes no warranties, expressed or implied, under the Agreement or otherwise.

D. Construction/Field Observation - If Client elects to have Engineer provide construction/field observation, client
understands that construction/field observation is conducted to reduce, not eliminate the risk of problems arising during
construction, and that provision of the service does not create a warranty or guarantee of any type. In all cases, the :
contractors, subcontractors, and/or any other persons performing any of the construction work, shall retain responsibility for 1
the quality and completeness of the construction work and for adhering to the plans, specifications and other contract
documents.

E. Construction Means and Methods - Engineer shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for any safety precautions and programs in
connection with the construction work, for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or any other persons
performing any of the construction work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out the construction work in accordance
with the plans, specifications or other contract documents.

F. Opinions of Probable Costs - Client acknowledges that Engineer has no control over market or contracting conditions and
that Engineer’s opinions of costs are based on experience, judgment, and information available at a specific period of time.
Client agrees that Engineer makes no guarantees or warranties, express or implied, that costs will not vary. from such
opinions.

G. Client Responsibilities

1. Client shall provide all criteria, Client Standards, and full information as to the requirements necessary for Engineer to
provide the professional services. Client shall designate in writing a person with authority to act on Client’s behalf on all
matters related to the Engineer’s services. Client shall assume all responsibility for interpretation of contract documents
and construction observation/field observation during times when Engineer has not been contracted to provide such
services and shall waive any and all claims against Engineer that may be connected thereto.

2. In the event the project site is not owned by the Client, the Client must obtain all necessaty permission for Engineer to
enter and conduct investigations on the project site. It is assumed that the Client possesses all necessary permits and
licenses required for conducting the scope of services. Access negotiations may be performed at additional costs. i
Engineer will take reasonable precaution to minimize damage to land and structures with field equipment. Client
assumes responsibility for all costs associated with protection and restoration of project site to condmons existing prior to
Engineer’s performance of services.

3. The Client, on behalf of all owners of the subject project site, hereby grants permission to the Engineer to utilize a small
unmanned aerial system (SUAS) for purposes of aerial mapping data acquisition. The Client is responsible to provide
required notifications to the property owners of the subject project site and affected properties where the SUAS services
will be performed. The Engineer will operate the SUAS in accordance with applicable State and Federal Laws. :

H. Hazardous or Contaminated Materials/Conditions

1. Client will advise Engineer, in writing and prior to the commencement of its services, of all known or suspected
Hazardous or Contaminated Materials/Conditions present at the site.

2. Engineer and Client agree that the discovery of unknown or unconfirmed Hazardous or Contaminated
Materials/Conditions constitutes a changed condition that may require Engineer to renegotiate the scope of or terminate
its services. Engineer and Client also agree that the discovery of said Materials/Conditions may make it necessary for
Engineer to take immediate measures to protect health, safety, and welfare of those performing Engineer’s services.
Client agrees to compensate Enginger for any costs incident to the discovery of said Materials/Conditions.

3. Client acknowledges that Engineer cannot guarantee that contaminants do not exist at a project site. Similarly, a site

)
Pre hof goge L of3
11, WO RADI Speciiontions s DocumentFina P Agaeness 1015-06- 208t fors andConciions - Pl Toikes.docs

(updated May 27, 2022)




image29.jpg
which is in fact unaffected by contaminants at the time of Engineer’s surface or subsurface exploration may later, due to
natural phenomena or human intervention, become contaminated. The Client waives any claim against Engineer, and
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Engineer harmless from any claims or liability for injury or loss in the event that
Engineer does not detect the presence of contaminants through techniques commonly employ ed.

4. The Client recognizes that although Engineer is required by the nature of the services to have an understanding of the
laws pertaining to environmental issues, Engineer cannot offer legal advice to the Client. Engineer urges that the Client
seek legal assistance from a qualified attorney when such assistance is required. Furthermore, the Client is cautioned to
not construe or assume that any representations made by Engineer in written or conversational settings constitute a legal
representation of environmental law or practice.

5. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the scope of services does not include the analysis, characterization or disposal of
wastes generated during investigation procedures. Should such wastes be generated during this investigation, the Client
will contract directly with a qualified waste hauler and disposal facility.

L Underground Utilities — To the extent that the Engineer, in performing its services, may impact underground utilities,
Engineer shall make a reasonable effort to contact the owners of identified underground utilities that may be affected by the
services for which Engineer has been contracted, including contacting the appropriate underground utility locating entities
and reviewing utility drawings provided by others. Engineer will take reasonable precautions to avoid damage or injury to
underground utilities and other underground structures. Client agrees to hold Engineer harmless for any damages to below
ground utilities and structures not brought to Engineers attention and/or accurately shown or described on documents
provided toEngineer.

J. Insurance

1. Engineer will maintain insurance for professional liability, general liability, worker’s compensation, auto liability, and
property damage in the amounts deemed appropriate by Engineer. Client will maintain insurance for general liability,
worker’s compensation, auto liability, and property damage in the amounts deemed appropriate by Client. Upon request,
Client and Engineer shall each deliver certificates of insurance to the other evidehcing their coverages.

2. Client shall require Contractors to purchase and maintain commercial general liability insurance and other insurance as
specified in project contract documents. Client shall cause Engineer, Engineer’s consultants, employees, and agents to be
listed as additional insureds with respect to any Client or Contractor insurances related to projects for which Engineer
provides services. Client agrees and must have Contractors agree to have their insurers endorse these policies to reflect
that, in the event of payment of any loss or damages, subrogation rights under these Terms and Conditions are hereby
waived by the insurer with respect to claims against Engineer.

K. Limitation of Liability - The total liability, in the aggregate, of Engineer and Engineer’s officers, directors, partners,
employees, agents, and consultants, whether jointly, severally or individually, to Client and anyone claiming by, through, or
under Client, for any and all injuries, losses, damages and expenses, whatsoever, arising out of; resulting from, or in any
way related to the Project or the Agreement, including but not limited to the performance of services under the Agreement,
from any cause or causes whatsoever, including but not limited to the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict
liability or breach of contract or warranty, expressed or implied, of Engineer or Engineer’s officers, directors, partners,
employees, agents, consultants, or any of them, shall not exceed the amount of the compensation paid to Engineer under this
Agreement, or the sum of fifty thousand dollars and no cents (850,000.00), whichever is less. Recoverable damages shall be
limited to those that are direct damages. Engineer shall not be responsible for or held liable for special, indirect or
consequential losses or damages, including but not limited to loss of use of equipment or facility, and loss of profits or
revenue.

Client acknowledges that Engineer is a corporation and agrees that any claim made by Client arising out of any act or
omission of any director, officer, or employee of Engineer, in the execution or performance of the Agreement, shall be made
against Engineer and not against such director, officer, or employee.

L. Documents and Data

1. All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer under the Agreement are Engineer’s instruments of service, and are
and shall remain the property of Engineer.

2. Hard copies of any documients provided by Engineer shall control over documents furnished in electronic format, Client
recognizes that data provided in electronic format can be corrupted or modified by the Client or others, unintentionally or
otherwise. Consequently, the use of any data, conclusions or information obtained or derived from electronic media
provided by Engineer will be at the Client’s sole risk and without any liability, risk or legal exposure to Engineer, its
employees, officers or consultants.

3. Any extrapolations, conclusions or assumptions derived by the Client or others from the data provided to the Client,
either in hard copy or electronic format, will be at the Client’s sole risk and full legal responsibility.

h page 2 of 3
(&A%Y 81@) RADn Spesftons and Doouents Tl PEN Agscrmets 2015 062\ T nd Condions - bl B docx

(updated May 27, 2022)




image30.jpg
2

Differing Site Conditions - Client recognizes that actual site conditions may vary from the assumed site conditions or test
locations used by Engineer as the basis of its design. Consequently, Engineer does not guarantee or warrant that actual site
conditions will not vary from those used as the basis of Engineer’s design, interpretations and recommendations. Engineer is
not responsible for any costs or delays attributable to differing site conditions. .

N. Terms of Payment - Unless alternate terms are included in the Agreement, Client will be invoiced on a monthly basis until
the completion of the Project. All monthly invoices are payable within 30 days of the date of the invoice. Should full
payment of any invoice not be received within 30 days, the amount due shall bear a service charge of 1.5 percent per month.
or 18 percent per year plus the cost of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fees. If Client has any objections to any
invoice submitted by Engineer, Client must so advise Engineer in writing within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the invoice.
Unless otherwise agreed, Engineer shall invoice Client based on hourly billing rates and direct costs current at the time of
service performance. Outside costs such as, but not limited to, equipment, meals, lodging, fees, and subconsultants shall be
actual costs plus 10 percent. In addition to any other remedies Engineer may have, Engineer shall have the absolute right to
cease performing any services in the event payment has not been made on 2 current basis.

O. Termination - Either party may terminate services, either in part or in whole, by providing 10 calendar days written notice
thereof to the other party. In such an event, Client shall pay Engineer for all services performed prior to receipt of such
notice of termination, including reimbursable expenses, and for any shut—down costs incurred. Shut-down costs may, at
Engineer’s discretion, include expenses incurred for completion of analysis and records necessary to document Engineer’s
files and to protect its professional reputation.

P. Severability and Waiver of Provisions - Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under
any laws or regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon
Client and P&N, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thexeof with a
valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. Non-
enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the
enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of the Agreement.

Q. Dispute Resolution - If a dispute arises between the parties relating to the Agreement, the parties agree to use the following
procedure prior to either party pursuing other available remedies:

1. Prior to commencing a lawsuit, the parties must attempt mediation to resolve any dispute. The parties will jointly appoint
a mutually acceptable person not affiliated with either of the parties to act as mediator. If the parties are unable to agree
on the mediator within twenty (20) calendar days, they shall seek assistance in such regard from the Circuit Court of the
State and County wherein the Project is located, who shall appoint a mediator. Each party shall be responsible for paying
all costs and expenses incurred by it, but shall split equally the fees and expenses of the mediator. The mediation shall
proceed in accordance with the procedures established by the mediator.

2. The parties shall pursue medijation in good faith and in a timely manner. In the event the mediation does not result in
resolution of the dispute within thirty (30} calendar days, then, upon seven (7) calendar days’ written notice to the other
party, either party may pursue any other available remedy.

3. Inthe event of any litigation arising from the Agreement, including without limitation any action to enforce or interpret
any terms or conditions or performance of services under the Agreement, Engineer and Client agree that such action will
be brought in the District or Circuit Court for the County of Kent, State of Michigan (or, if the federal courts have
exclusive jurisdiction over the subject matter of the dispute, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of
Michigan), and the parties hereby submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of said court.

R. Force Majeure - Engineer shall not be liable for any loss or damage due to failure or delay in rendering any services called
for under the Agreement resulting from any cause beyond Engineer’s reasonable control.

S. Assignment - Neither party shall assign its rights, interests or obligations under this Agreement without the express written
consent of the other party.

T. Modification - The Agreement may not be modified except in writing signed by the party against whom a modification is
sought to be enforced.

e

Survival - All express representations, indemnifications, or limitations of liability included in the Agreement shall survive
its completion or termination for any reason.

=

Third-Party Beneficiary - Client and Engineer agree that it is not intended that any provision of this Agreement establishes
a third-party beneficiary giving or allowing any claim or right of action whatsoever by a third party.

W. Fee Escalation - Proposed fees include a three percent (3%) per year cost of living adjustment. Should CPI increase by
more than 3% in a year, Engineer reserves the right to adjust fees at the beginning of the following year by the amount of
the prior year CPI increase.

Prem&Newhof pege 3 of3

(updated May 27, 2022)




image31.jpg
Current Fee Schedule

Prein&Newhof bills for each hour spent on a project at the hourly rate of the employees assigned.
Mileage is charged at $0.65 per mile. Direct expenses and sub-consultant costs are billed at invoice
plus a 10% handling charge.

Identified below are the hourly rates for various employee classifications:

Hourly Billing

Employee Classification Rate*
Senior Project Manager [T $185
Senior Project Manager $170
Project Manager, Senior Engineer 11, Landscape Architect III, Senior $155
Technician V

Senior Engineer 11, Surveyor IV, Geologist, Lab Manager, Senior Technician $145
v

Senior Engineer, Landscape Architect I, Surveyor III, Senior Technician I11 $136
Engineer II, Surveyor II, Senior Technician 11, Senior Office Technician $128
Engineer, Surveyor, Senior Construction Observer, Senior Technician $118
Landscape Architect, Construction Observer II, Technician [V $108
Construction Observer, Technician III, Lab Technician, Office Technician $99
Technician IT $87
Technician $74

*Hourly rates are typically adjusted yearly.

NOTE: Includes overhead, fringe benefits and profit; effective January, 2023.

Prem&Newhof




image1.jpg
K City of
Parchment
men

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION
January 3, 2023
7P.M.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan 11T

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Tammy Cooper Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner !
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard

City Attorney Robert Soltis

City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call ;

4. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of December 19, 2022

5. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval 1

6. Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below: !
o State your name and address for the records l
e You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
o Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk





image2.jpg
10.

11.

12.

13.

® Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

. Consent Agenda

Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
1. Warrant No. 1480 — action
ii. 2022 November Financial Reports — receive
iii. KATS Policy Meeting Minutes October 26, 2022- receive

. Unfinished Business

A. City of Parchment General Employee Manual
i. Holiday(s) and Floating Holidays — action
ii. Vacation — reaffirmation
iii. Parental Leave - action

New Business
A. Prein & Newhof Engineering Services Letter of Engagement — action

Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda

Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
Dplease follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.
Mayor and Commissioner Comments

City Manager Comments

Adjournment




image3.jpg
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON
MONDAY DECEMBER 19, 2022.

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. then led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. i

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan, Vice Mayor Jordan, Commissioners Conner, Coopet, Evans, Fooy, and Madaras. City
Manager Stoddard, Treasurer/Clerk Stutz.

Absent: None.

Minutes

Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the minutes of the December 5, 2022 Regular
meeting. Motion Carried.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
None. Moved by Commissioner Fooy supported by Commissioner Conner to approve the agenda as presented. Motion
Carried.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
None.

Consent Agenda
A, Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific items. Moved by Commissioner Fooy, supported by
Commissioner Evans to receive the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business
None.

New Business

A. 2023 Schedule of City Commissjon Meetings — action. Mayor Britigan noted that two meetings are on Tuesdays
(Jan 3 and Sept 5); he pointed out the budget work session on Feb 6, the April 17 discussion about the budget, and the May 1
public hearing for the coming budget. Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the
2023 meeting schedule as presented. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Britigan, Conner, Coaper, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 7-0.

B. City of Parchment General Employee Manual. City Manager Stoddard began discussion by looking forward to the
need for hiring new employees within the next five years. Putting together a hiring package to compete with not just private
industry, but with other local governmental units is important. Knowing we may not be able to offer higher pay, benefits can
be the way we make the difference for new hires.

1. Holiday schedule — action. City Manager Stoddard noted the preference for Veterans’ Day as a holiday. She also
said the 2 floating holidays are a more inclusive way to offer holidays without closing city hall or services. She added that the
floating days would have to be scheduled in advance with a supervisor or City Manager. Moved by Commissioner Cooper,
supported by Commissioner Conner to swap Veterans’ Day for Good Friday, with no additional days added. Discussion
included Vice Mayor Jordan saying he feels the city already manages time off, that this wouldn’t create a hardship on
services so he won’t support this motion. Commissioner Madaras agreed, saying many businesses are already closed these
holidays. More discussion ensued. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Conner, Cooper.

Nays: Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Absent: None.

Abstain: None.

Motion failed 2-5.
Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to table this action until January 3, 2023. Motion
Carried.




image4.jpg
Minutes of the December 19, 2022 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

12.

2. Vacation — action. City Manager Stoddard proposed a new vacation schedule which would give a step in the 10%
year of employment, again looking for more of an edge compared with other municipalities. Moved by Commissioner i
Cooper, supported by Commissioner Madaras to adopt the following vacation schedule: 1 yr — 40 hrs, 2 yrs — 80 hrs, 5 yrs — i
120 hrs, 10 yrs — 140 hrs, 15 yrs — 160 hrs, 20 yrs — 220 hrs, 25 yrs — 240 hrs. Roll call vote was as follows:
Ayes: Britigan, Cooper, Evans, Jordan, and Madaras.

Nays: Conner, Fooy.
Absent: None.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-2.

Citizen Comments
None.

Mayer and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Cooper wished everyone a safe and happy holiday, and said she appreciates the work of all city employees
and that she’s looking forward to the coming year.

Commissioner Conner also wished all a good Christmas.
Commissioner Madaras thanked city hall staff for their work all year long,
Commissioner Evans reported the sunken garden “looks amazing” and that she loves seeing it when she drives through.

Commissioner Fooy said it was interesting to listen to the vacation discussion, adding he thinks the city must be a good place
to work because of all the long term employees. He then wished everyone a safe, happy holiday.

Vice Mayor Jordan asked about the performance bond of the developer at the former admin building, then hoped everyone
has a happy safe holiday. He also mentioned looking forward to the coming year.

Mayor Britigan explained that the map in front of them is of the Central County Transportation Authority phase 3 that
includes some route changes. He agreed with Commissioner Fooy that since the city has long term employees, they “must be
doing something right”. And then he wished everyone a Merry Christmas and happy holiday.

City Manager Comments/Reports

City Manager Stoddard told everyone not to worry about the roads over the holidays, DPW will make sure they’re plowed,
even if it meant leaving their family celebrations to ensure the work gets done. She wished everyone a Merry Christmas and
invited anyone who has questions or concerns to call and discuss them with her.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Cooper and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 8:20 p.m.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk

i
]
]
i
]
i




image5.jpg
Check

37384
37385
37386
37387
37388
37389
37390
37391

Check Date __

12/27/2022
12/27/2022
12/27/2022
12/27/2022
12/27/2022
12/27/2022
12/27/2022
12/27/2022

-Vendor Name

City of Parchment
Check Register Report
Warrant 1480

J & J LOCKSMITHS

POINT AND PAY

PUBLIC MEDIA NETWORK

SHANNON STUTZ

SIEGFRIED CRANDALL P.C.

SIGNCRAFTERS

SMALL BUS ASSOC OF MICHIGAN
SOUTHWEST MICHIGAN PLANNING COMMISS

LABOR ON FIRE DOOR WITH MOBILE DEVICE
MONTHLY CC SERVICE FEES - NOVEMBER
DIRECT TV (JULY-SEPT) FRANCHISE FEES

INS DED REIMB - NOVEMBER

AUDITING SERVICES YEAR END 06/30/2022

CITY ASSESSOR MAGNETIC SIGNS

SBAM DUES THRU 11/30/2023 MEMBER #66992
KALAMAZOO RIVER URBAN WILDLIFE CORRIDOR

122,50
50.00
2,885.62
105.19
1,200.00
110.00
249.00
280.00

Amount




image6.jpg
00°000°2 LT 8YT (ve €96) LE"B6E ¥E°€96°2C 00°000°2 sat1ddng Burjexado 000°'0¥7L-002-T0T

00°006°L 82°12 TL°81C’9 zT°S6E 62°189°T 007006°L sbeysod 000°0€L-00Z-T0T
00°008°6 ¥6°90T  (00°089) 00°0 00°08% ‘0T 00°008°6 ITFOUSY IUSWSITIOY YHOI 000°72L~002-T0T
0070062 8L°Z€ 0Z°€T9°T 8G°£9T 08°98L 00°007 ‘2 STBDTPOR 000°22L-002-T0T
60°00L 0070 00°00L 00°0 00°0 00°00L uoT3esUSdUOD §,I8YI0N 000°02L~00Z-T0T
00700002 z1°28 TP°9LS'E VZ LE6'T 69°€2 ‘9T 00°000°0% uotsuegd 000°81L-00Z-T0T
00°000°% €6°€2T  {(ST"LS6) £5°€06 ST°LS6'T 000007 °TqTIOoNPad SOULIANSUL T00°9TL-002-T0T
oo.ooo“mm 06" VE 0v 692 ¥ (A1 4 09'0€L €L 00700089 @oueInsul ©ITT/T23TdsOH 000°9TL~00Z-T0T
00°005 ‘0T 70°2€ T8°GET'L 9€°669 6T"79€E'E 00°005’0T £31anoes TeT00S 000°5T£-002-10T
0000087 9L7¥E 0T'FTIE’TE 68°69% € 06°589 ‘9T 00°000°8% swTl 17ed - TTOXARG 000" €0L-002-T0T
00°000’€2T 5€°5€ 60°PTS ‘6L 70°266'8 T6°587 €V 00°000’€TT sulL TT0d - TToxARd 000°20L-00Z-T0T
UOTIBIISTUTWRPY ~ 00Z 23deq

00-o0cs8’1e 8009 L6969 ‘CL EL'6EC'Y €0°S0T’6T 00°008°1¢E SaTaRTSTBOT - 00T 3deq T=3ol
00°00€ 000 00°00€ 00°0 00°0 00°00€ STOSURTTROSTH 000°656-00T-T0T
00°000'S 6L°8 SP095°Y 00°0 §5°6EY 00°000°S ButysTiana » butiutad 000°006-00T-10T
0070002 0F"FT 00°2TL’T 00°88Z 00°88Z 00°000°Z UoTINqTIIUe) Butrresses 100°088-00T-T0T
00°000'T 00°82 007022 00°0 00°08Z 00°000°T UOTIOWOTI AJTUNWMOD 000°088-00T-TOT
00°0 00°00T  {00°SL) 00°S¢L 00°6L 00°0 BUTUTRIL ¥ $23I0ITASUL 000°098-00T-T0T
00°005°T 7792 8L'EET'T 00°0 2T 99¢€ 00°005'T seng 3 sdTysToqueR 000°0£8-00T-T0T
00°000‘2T 7E°E6 00°66L 00°LLS'T 00°102’TT 00°000°ZT *ATBS TPNIOBIIUOD/TRUOTSSOIOIL 000°008-00T-T0T
00°00L €0°€0T  (TZ"1T) 00°0 T2 1z 00°00L sa11ddng burjexsdo 000°0%L-00T-T0T
00°002 08791 00°L9T EV°6 00°"€€ 00002 2IPOTPeN 000°22L-00T-T0T
007082 00°0 00°08¢ 0070 0070 00°052 UOTIRSUSAWOD €, TSNTOM 000°0ZL-00T-TOT
007058 65°9T §6°80L 0E" 0V S0TTPT 00708 A37IN095 TRTOOS 000" STL-00T-TOT
00°000’8 06769 00°0v%°C 0070522 007096°G 0070008 surTy 1Ied - Trorled 000°€0L~00T-T0T
9AT3RTISTPST - 00T 3dea

saanlTpusdx®

00°008°L55'T LO'EL £V 06T T2V 2r S9E’E L5°T9L°ZPT T 00°Z56 €95 T SEONTATY TYIOL
00°008°LS5‘T LOEL €7 061°1CF Zhgoc’e LS TOL'ZHT'T 002586 ‘£9G6°T 000 3dea tR3OL
00007 ‘S 10°6€ TS E6TE 00°0 87°901°C 00°00%°S $90I00§ BUTOURUTA I9YU30 000°569-000-T0T
00°00% ‘LT 09799 pE TI8'S 00°C 99°88S'TT 00°007’LT SNOSURTTEIS TH 000°$69-000-T0T
007000012 00°0 00°000°0TZ 00°0 00°0 0070007012 PeSYISA0 I0F JUSWSSINQUTSY 000°089-000-T0T
007009 ‘% €2°L T2°L9Z‘Y 00°0 6L°ZEE 00°009°F SIUSWISSAUT UO 53I93UT 000°799-000-T0T
00°005°L TP 6T LOTF¥0 ‘9 00°0 €6°557°T 00°005°L SOUTA OTITRIL 000°299-000-T0T
007005 00°0 007008 00°0 00°0 007005 pPoIBPUSY §90TAJDS 10I SobIRUD 000°Z£9-000-T0T
007000202 92 €V 00 TI9pTT 00°0 00°68£°L8 007000202 ¥el s9es 1els 000°5L5-000-T0T
00°0 00°00T  {(ZLLLZ'D6) 00°0 ZLTLLZ V6 000 JuRTg IoleM - JURID 93PS 000°75S-000-T0T
00°0 00°0 00°2ST’9 00°0 00°0 00°25T°9 sjuRID TRILDPRA 000°TPS~000-TOT
000 00°00T  {00°8ET’LZ) 000 00°8ET LT 00°0 sjuexn °3els 000°075-000~10T
00" 000°9€ET LL BT €2°€TT’SL {6€°2) LL7988409 00°000‘9€T SUCTIDBTTOD 23SEM PTTIOS 000°¥5%-000-T0T
00°00L°C 00°0 00°00L°2 000 00°0 00°00L°C $934 UOT1ESIDVY 000°€5%-000~T0T
00°00L°ST €V EV 06°188°8 69°261'¢ 01°818°9 00°00L“ST §991 UOTSTASTJED 000°25¢-000-T0T
00°000°ST 79°02 £L7%06TT L2 8T LZ°660€ 00°000°ST $894 PUR SSULITT 000°TSF-000-T0T
00°00£°62 v8°'88 €1°0L2’E 89°L¥ L87620°92 00°00€ ‘62 S994 UOTIDDTTOD %T 000°877-000-T0T
007000°€ 09°59 06°T€0'T L1°601 0T"896°T 00°000°¢ | soxe], uo A3TeUSd 000°577-000-T0T
00°000°0FT S6°LE 927698798 00°0 VL OET €S 00°000°0%T Xel ®IeYS qels ATunummod TedoT 000" T¥7-000-T0T
007002’z €9°TOT  (¥8°5€) 00°0 ¥8SET T 00°002°2 S9TITTTORA [BTAISOPUL - SOXE] 000°50%-000-TOT
007005 799L TL766 0L T6T 2 00°0 0€°80€’79L 00°005799¢L SNUSASY XBL 000°P07-000-T0T
000 adeq

sanuaAsy

ANOd TVEENED - T0T pundg

132a0d azsn {WIONEY) WION {(g0HA) ONI {IIONGY) WJON LAOANE AIANTNT NOTILAT¥OSHT AEEHON T
TYNIOTHC 19a9 % AONVTYE 2Z/0E/TT HINOW 2T02/0€/1T £2-220¢
£E~2e0e AIIVITIVAY V0I ALIAILOY HONVIVE ALX
2202/0€/11 ONIANE QOI¥Ed . JuswyoIed dq
S8 :I¥esn

ZTLT :obeg INAWHD¥YYd J0 ALID ¥0d 1¥0ddd HEMNLIANIIXE ONY FONTATA Wd 2§:2T 2202/2Z/21




